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DATE:  May 11, 2015 

TO: Mayor Balducci and City Councilmembers 

FROM: Joyce Nichols, Director of Intergovernmental Relations 

City Manager’s Office 

SUBJECT: Regional Solid Waste Draft Transfer Plan Report Part 2 

In 2005-2006, the region participated in a multi-stakeholder planning process for the 

solid waste transfer and disposal system.  The process resulted in the 2006 Solid Waste 

Transfer and Waste Management Plan (approved by the County Council in 2007) that 

recognized the eight transfer stations in the system and the plans to update or replace the 

stations (the “Base Plan”):  

 Factoria (to be rebuilt on site – currently under construction),

 Houghton (to be closed and replaced with a new northeast county station),

 Bow Lake (rebuilt in 2013),

 Enumclaw,

 Algona (to be replaced by a new south county station),

 Renton,

 Shoreline (rebuilt in 2009) and

 Vashon.

A replacement for Algona is currently in planning, Houghton is still scheduled to close in 

the early 2020s, and Renton is also again under discussion for closure.  Bellevue 

supported and continues to support this original Base Plan for transfer stations, including 

the closure of Houghton. 

In 2013, the King County Council directed a review of the Transfer Plan (Part 1) in 

response to several circumstances:  the reduction in tonnage due to the economic 

downturn, a 2011 King County Performance Audit that addressed the cost, number and 

functionality of the transfer stations, and the revised tonnage forecasts due to the fact that 

Bellevue, Clyde Hill, Yarrow Point, Medina and Hunts Point did not sign the new 

extended ILA through 2040.   

Bellevue was actively involved in that review and provided feedback to the County in 

several letters and forums regarding impacts to the City, the Factoria Transfer Station and 

surrounding area, and the Eastgate Way property owned by the County.  Although the 

final report from the Part 1 review recommended that the new northeast transfer station 

be kept as a potential future facility to retain flexibility in the system, the County Council 

directed additional review of the northeast and Renton service area needs (Part 2 review) 
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through a proviso in the 2015 budget.  The direction provided was to analyze operational, 

policy and capital strategies to provide transfer service to the northeast portion of King 

County, including the comparison of building a new transfer station versus implementing 

demand management strategies instead.  In other words, the staff’s assignment was to 

find a way to not build a new transfer station in the northeast county.  The County 

Council also requested an analysis of the potential closure of the Renton Transfer Station. 

The Part 2 review assumes that Houghton will close as planned. 

 

The Transfer Plan Review Part 2 Draft Report was issued on March 31, 2015 and 

concluded the following: 

 

Based on the data and the analysis the division has done to date, it appears that 

there are viable alternatives to building a new Northeast Recycling and Transfer 

Station even when the Houghton Transfer Station is closed (no later than 2023).  

These alternatives are not without impacts, however, and they require the support 

and potential policy actions from our City partners.  The alternatives require a 

variety of other actions and decisions that must be taken in order to mitigate the 

impacts on other transfer stations. 

 

Bellevue and several other cities in northeast King County have serious concerns 

regarding the proposal to not include a new northeast transfer station in the 

comprehensive plan.  There are significant negative impacts to Bellevue and other 

northeast cities, and the concerns were captured in letters sent to the County as part of the 

public comment process on the Part 2 draft report. 

 

Attached are the following comment letters: 

 

 Joint letter to the King County Executive and County Council signed by the 

Mayors from Bellevue, Beaux Arts, Clyde Hill, Bothell, Hunts Point, Medina, 

Newcastle, Renton and Yarrow Point, dated May 6, 2015 

 Bellevue letter to the Director of the King County Department of Natural 

Resources and Parks regarding the Factoria Transfer Station Conditional Use 

Permit, dated May 6, 2015 

 Bellevue comment letter to the King County Executive and County Council 

regarding the Transfer Plan Review Part 2 Draft Report, dated May 6, 2015 

 

On a related issue, Bellevue and King County have been discussing Bellevue’s potential 

purchase of the County’s property located on Eastgate Way in exchange for Bellevue 

signing the new extended Solid Waste Interlocal Agreement.  The City has had a long-

standing interest in purchasing that property for many reasons.  The Council adopted an 

Eastgate/I-90 Corridor Plan to implement the City’s vision for development of the area.  

The property is ideally situated for mixed use, transit-oriented development near the 

Eastgate Park and Ride and Bellevue College.  In particular, the property could be 

developed using a public/private partnership for commercial uses as well as important 

public uses, such as affordable housing or as a possible homeless shelter.    
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